


        
        

       

 



          

           

 



       

ĞƌƚƵƐ/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚΘdƌĂĚŝŶŐ>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ


&(5786,19(670(17 75$',1*/,0,7('






),1$1&,$/67$7(0(176







































)257+(<($5(1'('0$5&+






















































&217(176















3$*(6















































 






























































































   

  




















































    











































      











































     








































     














































"#


  !






































    




"" 



ϭ
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CERTUS INVESTMENT & TRADING LIMITED
CORPORATE DATA

Date of
appointment
DIRECTORS

:

Kapildeo Joory
Ashwin Chidambaram Muthiah
Zakir Hussein Niamut
Yashwant Kumar Beeharee

REGISTERED
OFFICE

:

IFS Court
TwentyEight
Cybercity
Ebene
Mauritius

SECRETARY

:

International Financial Services Limited
IFS Court
TwentyEight
Cybercity
Ebene
Mauritius

AUDITORS

:

Nexia Baker & Arenson
Chartered Accountants
th
5 Floor, C&R Court
49, Labourdonnais Street
Port Louis
Mauritius

BANKER

:

HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited
th
6 Floor, HSBC Centre
18, Cybercity
Ebene
Mauritius

30 October 2001
5 November 2001
19 December 2011
5 February 2013

Date of resignation

5 February 2013
-
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7KH GLUHFWRUV SUHVHQW WKH DXGLWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI &(5786 ,19(670(17  75$',1* /,0,7(' WKH
³&RPSDQ\´ IRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

35,1&,3$/$&7,9,7<

7KHSULQFLSDODFWLYLW\RIWKH&RPSDQ\LVWRDFWDVDQLQYHVWPHQWKROGLQJFRPSDQ\

5(68/76

7KHUHVXOWVIRUWKH\HDUDUHVKRZQLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHDQGUHODWHGQRWHV

',5(&7256

7KHSUHVHQWPHPEHUVKLSRIWKH%RDUGLVVHWRXWRQSDJH

',5(&7256¶5(63216,%,/,7,(6,15(63(&72)7+(),1$1&,$/67$7(0(176

&RPSDQ\ ODZ UHTXLUHV WKH GLUHFWRUV WR SUHSDUH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV IRU HDFK ILQDQFLDO \HDU ZKLFK SUHVHQW IDLUO\ WKH
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHDQGFDVKIORZVRIWKH&RPSDQ\,QSUHSDULQJWKRVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKH
GLUHFWRUVDUHUHTXLUHGWR


VHOHFWVXLWDEOHDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDQGWKHQDSSO\WKHPFRQVLVWHQWO\

PDNHMXGJHPHQWVDQGHVWLPDWHVWKDWDUHUHDVRQDEOHDQGSUXGHQW

VWDWHZKHWKHUDSSOLFDEOHDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVKDYHEHHQIROORZHGVXEMHFWWRDQ\PDWHULDOGHSDUWXUHVGLVFORVHG
DQGH[SODLQHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQG

SUHSDUH WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RQ WKH JRLQJ FRQFHUQ EDVLV XQOHVV LW LV LQDSSURSULDWH WR SUHVXPH WKDW WKH
&RPSDQ\ZLOOFRQWLQXHLQEXVLQHVV

7KH GLUHFWRUV KDYH FRQILUPHG WKDW WKH\ KDYH FRPSOLHG ZLWK WKH DERYH UHTXLUHPHQWV LQ SUHSDULQJ WKH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV

7KH GLUHFWRUV DUH UHVSRQVLEOH IRU NHHSLQJ SURSHU DFFRXQWLQJUHFRUGV ZKLFK GLVFORVH ZLWK UHDVRQDEOH DFFXUDF\ DW DQ\
WLPHWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH&RPSDQ\DQGWRHQDEOHWKHPWRHQVXUHWKDWWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVFRPSO\ZLWKWKH
0DXULWLDQ&RPSDQLHV$FW7KH\DUHDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRUVDIHJXDUGLQJWKHDVVHWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\DQGKHQFHIRU
WDNLQJUHDVRQDEOHVWHSVIRUWKHSUHYHQWLRQDQGGHWHFWLRQRIIUDXGDQGRWKHULUUHJXODULWLHV

$8',7256

7KH DXGLWRUV 1H[LD %DNHU  $UHQVRQ KDYH LQGLFDWHG WKHLU ZLOOLQJQHVV WR FRQWLQXH LQ RIILFH XQWLO WKH QH[W $QQXDO
0HHWLQJ

ϯ


ĞƌƚƵƐ/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚΘdƌĂĚŝŶŐ>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ


&(57,),&$7()5207+(6(&5(7$5<81'(56(&7,21 G 2)7+(0$85,7,$1&203$1,(6$&7

8H FHUWLI\ WR WKH EHVW RI RXU NQRZOHGJH DQG EHOLHI WKDW ZH KDYH ILOHG ZLWK WKH 5HJLVWUDU RI &RPSDQLHV DOO VXFK
UHWXUQVDVDUHUHTXLUHGRI&(5786,19(670(17 75$',1*/,0,7('XQGHUWKH0DXULWLDQ&RPSDQLHV$FW
GXULQJWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB
)RU,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO6HUYLFHV/LPLWHG
6HFUHWDU\


5HJLVWHUHGRIILFH
,)6&RXUW7ZHQW\(LJKW&\EHUFLW\(EHQH0DXULWLXV
WK
'DWH -XO\

ϰ


ĞƌƚƵƐ/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚΘdƌĂĚŝŶŐ>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ

1'(3(1'(17$8',7256¶5(3257727+(0(0%(52)
&(5786,19(670(17 75$',1*/,0,7('













5HSRUWRQWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
8HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRI&(5786,19(670(17 75$',1*/,0,7(' WKH³&RPSDQ\´ VHWRXW
RQ SDJHV  WR  ZKLFK FRPSULVH WKH VWDWHPHQW RI ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DV DW  0DUFK  DQG WKH VWDWHPHQW RI
FRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHVWDWHPHQWRIFKDQJHVLQHTXLW\DQGVWDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGDQGD
VXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDQGRWKHUH[SODQDWRU\QRWHV
'LUHFWRUV¶5HVSRQVLELOLW\IRUWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV



7KH GLUHFWRUV DUH UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ DFFRUGDQFH
ZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGVDQGLQFRPSOLDQFHZLWKWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH0DXULWLDQ&RPSDQLHV
$FWDQGIRUVXFKLQWHUQDOFRQWURODVWKHGLUHFWRUVGHWHUPLQHLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
$XGLWRUV¶5HVSRQVLELOLW\
2XUUHVSRQVLELOLW\LVWRH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVEDVHGRQRXUDXGLW:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLW
LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK ,QWHUQDWLRQDO 6WDQGDUGV RQ $XGLWLQJ  7KRVH 6WDQGDUGV UHTXLUH WKDW ZH FRPSO\ ZLWK HWKLFDO
UHTXLUHPHQWV DQG SODQ DQG SHUIRUP WKH DXGLW WR REWDLQ UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH ZKHWKHU WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH
IUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQW
$QDXGLWLQYROYHVSHUIRUPLQJSURFHGXUHVWRREWDLQDXGLWHYLGHQFHDERXWWKHDPRXQWVDQGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV7KHSURFHGXUHVVHOHFWHGGHSHQG RQ WKH DXGLWRUV¶MXGJHPHQWLQFOXGLQJWKHDVVHVVPHQWRIWKH ULVNV RI
PDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU,QPDNLQJWKRVHULVNDVVHVVPHQWV
WKH DXGLWRUV FRQVLGHU LQWHUQDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH &RPSDQ\¶V SUHSDUDWLRQ DQG IDLU SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLWSURFHGXUHVWKDWDUHDSSURSULDWHLQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRI
H[SUHVVLQJDQRSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH&RPSDQ\¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO$QDXGLWDOVRLQFOXGHVHYDOXDWLQJWKH
DSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHGDQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVPDGHE\WKHGLUHFWRUV
DVZHOODVHYDOXDWLQJWKHRYHUDOOSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
:H EHOLHYH WKDW WKH DXGLW HYLGHQFH ZH KDYH REWDLQHG LV VXIILFLHQW DQG DSSURSULDWH WR SURYLGH D EDVLV IRU RXU DXGLW
RSLQLRQ

2SLQLRQ

,QRXURSLQLRQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVVHWRXWRQSDJHVWRJLYHDWUXHDQGIDLUYLHZRIWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRI
WKH &RPSDQ\ DW  0DUFK  DQG RI LWV ILQDQFLDO SHUIRUPDQFH DQG LWV FDVK IORZV IRU WKH \HDU WKHQ HQGHG LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK,QWHUQDWLRQDO)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ6WDQGDUGVDVPRGLILHGE\WKHH[HPSWLRQIURPFRQVROLGDWLRQLQWKH
0DXULWLDQ &RPSDQLHV $FW  IRU FRPSDQLHVKROGLQJ D &DWHJRU\  *OREDO %XVLQHVV /LFHQFH DQGFRPSO\ ZLWK WKH
0DXULWLDQ&RPSDQLHV$FW

2WKHU0DWWHU

7KLV UHSRUW LV PDGH VROHO\ WR WKH &RPSDQ\ V PHPEHU DV D ERG\ LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK 6HFWLRQ  RI WKH 0DXULWLDQ
&RPSDQLHV$FW2XUDXGLWZRUNKDVEHHQXQGHUWDNHQVRWKDWZHPLJKWVWDWHWRWKH&RPSDQ\ VPHPEHUWKRVH
PDWWHUV ZH DUH UHTXLUHG WR VWDWH WR WKHP LQ DQ DXGLWRUV¶ UHSRUW DQG IRU QR RWKHU SXUSRVH  7R WKH IXOOHVW H[WHQW
SHUPLWWHGE\ODZZHGRQRWDFFHSWRUDVVXPHUHVSRQVLELOLW\WRDQ\RQHRWKHUWKDQWKH&RPSDQ\DQGWKH&RPSDQ\ V
PHPEHUDVDERG\IRURXUDXGLWZRUNIRUWKLVUHSRUWRUIRUWKHRSLQLRQVZHKDYHIRUPHG
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ĞƌƚƵƐ/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚΘdƌĂĚŝŶŐ>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ

5HSRUWRQ2WKHU/HJDODQG5HJXODWRU\5HTXLUHPHQWV
0DXULWLDQ&RPSDQLHV$FW
8HKDYHQRUHODWLRQVKLSZLWKRULQWHUHVWVLQWKH&RPSDQ\RWKHUWKDQLQRXUFDSDFLW\DVDXGLWRUV
:HKDYHREWDLQHGDOOLQIRUPDWLRQDQGH[SODQDWLRQVZHKDYHUHTXLUHG
,QRXURSLQLRQSURSHUDFFRXQWLQJUHFRUGVKDYHEHHQNHSWE\WKH&RPSDQ\DVIDUDVLWDSSHDUVIURPRXUH[DPLQDWLRQ
RIWKRVHUHFRUGV





1H[LD%DNHU $UHQVRQ

2XPD6KDQNDU2FKLW)&&$
&KDUWHUHG$FFRXQWDQWV
/LFHQVHGE\)5&


WK
'DWH -XO\
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3URIHVVLRQDOIHHV













/LFHQFHIHHV













$XGLWIHHV













%DQNFKDUJHV









































2SHUDWLQJSURILW ORVV IRUWKH\HDUSHULRG











 



















 









,PSDLUPHQWRILQYHVWPHQWLQVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQ\





 

,PSDLUPHQWRIDGYDQFHWRVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQ\



 L 



 





3D\DEOHVZULWWHQEDFN













&DSLWDOSURMHFWZULWWHQRII











 

5HFHLYDEOHZULWWHQRII











 

/RVVEHIRUHWD[DWLRQ

7D[DWLRQ













 







 

















/RVVIRUWKH\HDUSHULRG







 



 

,PSDLUPHQWRILQYHVWPHQWLQDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\















2WKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH















 









 







7RWDOFRPSUHKHQVLYHORVVIRUWKH\HDUSHULRG








7KHQRWHVRQSDJHVWRIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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1RQFXUUHQWDVVHWV







,QYHVWPHQWVLQVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQLHV













,QYHVWPHQWLQDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\




























&XUUHQWDVVHWV



















$GYDQFHVDQGSUHSD\PHQWV













&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV




























7RWDODVVHWV




















(48,7<$1'/,$%,/,7<



















&DSLWDODQGUHVHUYHV













6WDWHGFDSLWDO













$FFXPXODWHG ORVV SURILWV







  




















&XUUHQWOLDELOLW\



















3D\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV



























7RWDOHTXLW\DQGOLDELOLW\





















1RWHV







()'(



86'

86'





























WK

$SSURYHGE\WKH%RDUGIRULVVXHRQ -XO\DQGVLJQHGRQLWVEHKDOIE\




















6G





6G

'LUHFWRU





'LUHFWRU











7KHQRWHVRQSDJHVWRIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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ORVV 



7RWDO



86'



86'









6WDWHG









FDSLWDO
86'











$W-DQXDU\



































 

  



  

7RWDOFRPSUHKHQVLYHORVVIRUWKHSHULRG













$W0DUFK











































7RWDOFRPSUHKHQVLYHORVVIRUWKH\HDU





 

  



  



















$W0DUFK











  

































































































































































































































































7KHQRWHVRQSDJHVWRIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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&DVKIORZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

 

 

/RVVEHIRUHWD[DWLRQ

 



   

  

$GMXVWPHQWVIRU

 



 



,QWHUHVWLQFRPH

 



   

  

1RWHV



<HDUHQGHG
0DUFK
86'



3HULRGIURP



-DQXDU\



WR



0DUFK




86'


3D\DEOHVZULWWHQEDFN







   



,PSDLUPHQWRILQYHVWPHQWLQVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQ\







 



,PSDLUPHQWRILQYHVWPHQWLQDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\







 



,PSDLUPHQWRIDGYDQFHWRVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQ\



 L 



 



&DSLWDOSURMHFWZULWWHQRII







 



5HFHLYDEOHZULWWHQRII







 



2SHUDWLQJORVVHVEHIRUHZRUNLQJFDSLWDOFKDQJHV

 



   

  

,QFUHDVH GHFUHDVHLQDGYDQFHVDQGSUHSD\PHQWV

 



   



'HFUHDVH LQFUHDVHLQSD\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV

 



   



1HWFDVK XVHGLQ IURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

 



   




&DVKIORZVIURPLQYHVWLQJDFWLYLW\

 
 




 
 




,QWHUHVWUHFHLYHG

 



 



1HWFDVKIURPLQYHVWLQJDFWLYLW\

 



 




1HW GHFUHDVH LQFUHDVHLQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDWEHJLQQLQJRIWKH\HDUSHULRG

 



 



 



 



 



   



 



 



 



 



 



 





 





 



 
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDWHQGRIWKH\HDUSHULRG



7KHQRWHVRQSDJHVWRIRUPDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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ĞƌƚƵƐ/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚΘdƌĂĚŝŶŐ>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ


127(6727+(),1$1&,$/67$7(0(176
)257+(<($5(1'('0$5&+


 *HQHUDOLQIRUPDWLRQ

7KH&RPSDQ\ZDVLQFRUSRUDWHGLQ0DXULWLXVRQ2FWREHUXQGHUWKH&RPSDQLHV$FWQRZUHSODFHGE\
WKH &RPSDQLHV $FW  DV D SULYDWH FRPSDQ\ ZLWK OLDELOLW\ OLPLWHG E\ VKDUHV DQG KROGV D &DWHJRU\  *OREDO
%XVLQHVV/LFHQFHLVVXHGE\WKH)LQDQFLDO6HUYLFHV&RPPLVVLRQ7KHUHJLVWHUHGRIILFHDGGUHVVRIWKH&RPSDQ\LVDW
,)6&RXUW7ZHQW\(LJKW&\EHUFLW\(EHQH0DXULWLXV

7KHSULQFLSDODFWLYLW\RIWKH&RPSDQ\LVWRDFWDVDQLQYHVWPHQWKROGLQJFRPSDQ\

7KHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\DUHSUHVHQWHGLQ8QLWHG6WDWHV'ROODU ³86'´ ZKLFKLVWKH&RPSDQ\¶V
IXQFWLRQDODQGSUHVHQWDWLRQFXUUHQF\



 %DVLVRISUHSDUDWLRQ

D  6WDWHPHQWRIFRPSOLDQFH
7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH SUHSDUHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DQG FRPSO\ ZLWK ,QWHUQDWLRQDO )LQDQFLDO 5HSRUWLQJ
6WDQGDUGV ,)56  H[FHSWIRUWKH UHTXLUHPHQW WR SUHSDUHFRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK
UHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH0DXULWLDQ&RPSDQLHV$FWDSSOLFDEOHWRDQ\FRPSDQ\KROGLQJDFDWHJRU\*OREDO%XVLQHVV
/LFHQFH

E  %DVLVRIPHDVXUHPHQW
7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGRQDKLVWRULFDOFRVWEDVLVH[FHSWIRUILQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV
ZKLFKDUHPHDVXUHGDWIDLUYDOXH

L  )XQFWLRQDODQGSUHVHQWDWLRQFXUUHQF\
7KH&RPSDQ\¶VIXQFWLRQDODQGSUHVHQWDWLRQ FXUUHQF\ LV86'DQGDOO YDOXHVDUH URXQGHGWRWKHQHDUHVW 'ROODU
86'LVWKHFXUUHQF\RIWKHSULPDU\HFRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQWLQZKLFKLWRSHUDWHVDQGWKH&RPSDQ\¶VSHUIRUPDQFH
LVHYDOXDWHGDQGLWVOLTXLGLW\LVPDQDJHGLQ86'

LL  7UDQVDFWLRQVDQGEDODQFHV
)RUHLJQFXUUHQF\WUDQVDFWLRQVDUHWUDQVODWHGLQWRWKHIXQFWLRQDOFXUUHQF\XVLQJWKHH[FKDQJHUDWHVSUHYDLOLQJDW
WKHGDWHVRIWKHWUDQVDFWLRQV0RQHWDU\DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVGHQRPLQDWHGLQIRUHLJQFXUUHQFLHVDUHUHWUDQVODWHGDW
\HDUHQG H[FKDQJH UDWHV DQG GLIIHUHQFHV LQ H[FKDQJH DUH DFFRXQWHG IRU LQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI FRPSUHKHQVLYH
LQFRPH


F   8VHRIHVWLPDWHVDQGMXGJPHQW

7KH SUHSDUDWLRQ RI ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ FRQIRUPLW\ ZLWK ,)56 UHTXLUHV PDQDJHPHQW WR PDNH HVWLPDWHV DQG
DVVXPSWLRQV WKDW DIIHFW WKH UHSRUWHG DPRXQWV RI DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DQG GLVFORVXUH RI FRQWLQJHQW DVVHWV DQG
OLDELOLWLHV DW WKH HQG RI WKH UHSRUWLQJ SHULRG DQG WKH UHSRUWHG DPRXQWV RI UHYHQXHV DQG H[SHQVHV GXULQJ WKH
UHSRUWLQJSHULRG$FWXDOUHVXOWVFRXOGGLIIHUIURPWKRVHHVWLPDWHV












ϭϭ


ĞƌƚƵƐ/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚΘdƌĂĚŝŶŐ>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ


(VWLPDWHVDQGXQGHUO\LQJDVVXPSWLRQVDUHUHYLHZHGRQDQRQJRLQJEDVLV5HYLVLRQWRDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHV
DUHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHHVWLPDWHLVUHYLVHGDQGLQDQ\IXWXUHSHULRGDIIHFWHG


G  *RLQJFRQFHUQ

7KH &RPSDQ\¶V PDQDJHPHQW KDV PDGH DQ DVVHVVPHQW RI WKH &RPSDQ\¶V DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQXH DV D JRLQJ
FRQFHUQ DQG LV VDWLVILHG WKDW WKH &RPSDQ\ KDV WKH UHVRXUFHV WR FRQWLQXH LQ EXVLQHVV IRU WKH IRUHVHHDEOH
IXWXUH  )XUWKHUPRUH WKH PDQDJHPHQW LV QRW DZDUH RI DQ\ PDWHULDO XQFHUWDLQWLHV WKDW PD\ FDVW VLJQLILFDQW
GRXEW XSRQ WKH &RPSDQ\¶V DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQXH DV D JRLQJ FRQFHUQ  7KHUHIRUH WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV
FRQWLQXHWREHSUHSDUHGRQDJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLV





$FFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV

D &KDQJHVLQDFFRXQWLQJSROLF\DQGGLVFORVXUHV

6WDQGDUGV$PHQGPHQWVWRSXEOLVKHG6WDQGDUGVDQG,QWHUSUHWDWLRQVHIIHFWLYHLQWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG

'LVFORVXUHV ± 7UDQVIHUV RI )LQDQFLDO $VVHWV $PHQGPHQWV WR ,)56   7KHVH DPHQGPHQWV LPSURYH WKH
GLVFORVXUH UHTXLUHPHQWV LQ UHODWLRQ WR WUDQVIHUUHG ILQDQFLDO DVVHWV 7KH DPHQGPHQWV DUH QRW H[SHFWHG WR
KDYHDQ\LPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

6HYHUH +\SHULQIODWLRQ DQG 5HPRYDO RI )L[HG 'DWHVIRU )LUVWWLPH $GRSWHUV $PHQGPHQWVWR ,)56 7KHVH
DPHQGPHQWV UHSODFHUHIHUHQFHVWRDIL[HGWUDQVLWLRQGDWH ZLWKµWKHGDWH RIWUDQVLWLRQWR,)56V¶DQGVHWRXW
WKHUHTXLUHPHQWVIRUKRZDQHQWLW\UHVXPHVSUHVHQWLQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK,)56VDIWHU
D SHULRG ZKHQ WKH HQWLW\ ZDV XQDEOH WR FRPSO\ ZLWK ,)56VEHFDXVH LWVIXQFWLRQDO FXUUHQF\ ZDV VXEMHFW WR
VHYHUH K\SHULQIODWLRQ 7KH DPHQGPHQWV DUH QRW H[SHFWHG WR KDYH DQ\ LPSDFW RQ WKH &RPSDQ\¶V ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV

'HIHUUHG 7D[ 5HFRYHU\ RI 8QGHUO\LQJ $VVHWV $PHQGPHQWV WR ,$6   LQWURGXFHV D SUHVXPSWLRQ WKDW
LQYHVWPHQW SURSHUWLHVWKDWDUHPHDVXUHG XVLQJWKHIDLUYDOXH PRGHOLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK ,$6  ,QYHVWPHQW
3URSHUW\DUHUHFRYHUHGHQWLUHO\WKURXJKVDOHIRUWKHSXUSRVHVRIPHDVXULQJGHIHUUHGWD[HV7KLVSUHVXPSWLRQ
LV UHEXWWHG LI WKH LQYHVWPHQW SURSHUW\ LV KHOG ZLWKLQ D EXVLQHVV PRGHO ZKRVH REMHFWLYH LV WR FRQVXPH
VXEVWDQWLDOO\DOORIWKHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVHPERGLHGLQWKHLQYHVWPHQWSURSHUW\RYHUWLPHUDWKHUWKDQWKURXJK
VDOH7KLVDPHQGPHQWLVXQOLNHO\WRKDYHDQLPSDFWRQWKH&RPSDQ\¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

6WDQGDUGV$PHQGPHQWVWRSXEOLVKHG6WDQGDUGVDQG,QWHUSUHWDWLRQVLVVXHGEXWQRW\HWHIIHFWLYH
&HUWDLQ VWDQGDUGV DPHQGPHQWV WR SXEOLVKHG VWDQGDUGV DQG LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV KDYH EHHQ LVVXHG WKDW DUH
PDQGDWRU\ IRU DFFRXQWLQJ SHULRGV EHJLQQLQJ RQ RU DIWHU  -DQXDU\  RU ODWHU SHULRGV EXW ZKLFK WKH
&RPSDQ\KDVQRWHDUO\DGRSWHG
$WHQGRIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRGWKHIROORZLQJZHUHLQLVVXHEXWQRW\HWHIIHFWLYH

$PHQGPHQWVWR,$63UHVHQWDWLRQRI,WHPVRI2WKHU&RPSUHKHQVLYH,QFRPH (IIHFWLYH-XO\ 
,)56)LQDQFLDO,QVWUXPHQWV


,$66HSDUDWH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
,$6,QYHVWPHQWVLQ$VVRFLDWHVDQG-RLQW9HQWXUHV
,)56&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
,)56-RLQW$UUDQJHPHQWV
,)56'LVFORVXUHRI,QWHUHVWVLQ2WKHU(QWLWLHV
,)56)DLU9DOXH0HDVXUHPHQW
,$6(PSOR\HH%HQHILWV 5HYLVHG 
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,)5,&6WULSSLQJ&RVWVLQWKH3URGXFWLRQ3KDVHRID6XUIDFH0LQH
'LVFORVXUHV²2IIVHWWLQJ)LQDQFLDO$VVHWVDQG)LQDQFLDO/LDELOLWLHV $PHQGPHQWVWR,)56 

,$62IIVHWWLQJ)LQDQFLDO$VVHWVDQG)LQDQFLDO/LDELOLWLHV $PHQGPHQWVWR,$6 
$PHQGPHQWWR,)56 *RYHUQPHQW/RDQV 
$QQXDO,PSURYHPHQWVWR,)56V&\FOH
&RQVROLGDWHG)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV-RLQW$UUDQJHPHQWVDQG'LVFORVXUHRI,QWHUHVWVLQ2WKHU(QWLWLHV
7UDQVLWLRQ*XLGDQFH
,QYHVWPHQW(QWLWLHV $PHQGPHQWVWR,)56,)56DQG,$6 

:KHUH UHOHYDQW WKH &RPSDQ\ LV VWLOO HYDOXDWLQJ WKH HIIHFW RI WKHVH 6WDQGDUGV DPHQGPHQWV WR SXEOLVKHG
6WDQGDUGVDQG,QWHUSUHWDWLRQVLVVXHGEXWQRW\HWHIIHFWLYHRQWKHSUHVHQWDWLRQRILWVILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


E  )LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV

)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVFDUULHGRQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQLQFOXGHDGYDQFHVFDVKDQGFDVK
HTXLYDOHQWVDQGSD\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV7KHSDUWLFXODUUHFRJQLWLRQ PHWKRGVDGRSWHGDUHGLVFORVHG LQ
WKHLQGLYLGXDOSROLF\VWDWHPHQWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKHDFKLWHP

F  5HYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQ

'LYLGHQGVDUHUHFRJQLVHGZKHQWKH&RPSDQ\¶VULJKWWRUHFHLYHSD\PHQWLVHVWDEOLVKHG%DQNLQWHUHVW
LQFRPHDQGRWKHULQWHUHVWLQFRPHDUHUHFRJQLVHGRQDQDFFUXDOEDVLV

G  ([SHQVHUHFRJQLWLRQ

([SHQVHVDUHDFFRXQWHGIRULQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHRQDQDFFUXDOEDVLV

H  ,QYHVWPHQWLQVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQLHV

6XEVLGLDU\XQGHUWDNLQJVDUHWKRVHHQWLWLHVLQZKLFKWKH&RPSDQ\KDVDQLQWHUHVWRIPRUHWKDQRQHKDOI
RIWKHYRWLQJULJKWVRURWKHUZLVHKDVSRZHUWRH[HUFLVHFRQWURORYHUWKHRSHUDWLRQV

,QYHVWPHQWLQVXEVLGLDU\LVVKRZQDWFRVW:KHUHDQLQGLFDWLRQRILPSDLUPHQWH[LVWVWKHUHFRYHUDEOH
DPRXQW RI WKH LQYHVWPHQW LV DVVHVVHG  :KHUH WKH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW LV JUHDWHU WKDQ WKH HVWLPDWHG
UHFRYHUDEOH DPRXQW LW LV ZULWWHQ GRZQ LPPHGLDWHO\ WR LWV UHFRYHUDEOH DPRXQW DQG WKH GLIIHUHQFH LV
FKDUJHG WR WKH VWDWHPHQW RI FRPSUHKHQVLYH LQFRPH  2Q GLVSRVDO RI DQ LQYHVWPHQW WKH GLIIHUHQFH
EHWZHHQWKHQHWGLVSRVDOSURFHHGVDQGWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWLVFKDUJHGRUFUHGLWHGWRWKHVWDWHPHQWRI
FRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH

,QYHVWPHQWLQDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\

I


$Q DVVRFLDWH LV DQ HQWLW\ RYHU ZKLFK WKH &RPSDQ\ KDV VLJQLILFDQW LQIOXHQFH EXW QRW FRQWURO RU MRLQW
FRQWURO,QYHVWPHQWVLQDVVRFLDWHVDUHDFFRXQWHGIRUE\WKHHTXLW\PHWKRGH[FHSWZKHQFODVVLILHGDV
KHOGIRUVDOH,QYHVWPHQWVLQDVVRFLDWHVDUHLQLWLDOO\UHFRJQLVHGDWFRVWDVDGMXVWHGE\SRVWDFTXLVLWLRQ
FKDQJHVLQWKH&RPSDQ\¶VVKDUHRIWKHQHWDVVHWVRIWKHDVVRFLDWHOHVVDQ\LPSDLUPHQWLQWKHYDOXHRI
WKHLQGLYLGXDOLQYHVWPHQWV

:KHQWKH&RPSDQ\¶VVKDUHRIORVVHVH[FHHGVLWVLQWHUHVWLQDQDVVRFLDWHWKH&RPSDQ\GLVFRQWLQXHV
UHFRJQLVLQJIXUWKHUORVVHVXQOHVVLWKDVLQFXUUHGOHJDORUFRQVWUXFWLYHREOLJDWLRQRUPDGHSD\PHQWVRQ
EHKDOIRIWKHDVVRFLDWH

J  &DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

&DVK DQG FDVK HTXLYDOHQWV FRPSULVH FDVK DW EDQN IL[HG GHSRVLWV DQG RWKHU VKRUWWHUP KLJKO\ OLTXLG
LQYHVWPHQWVWKDWDUHUHDGLO\FRQYHUWLEOHWRNQRZQDPRXQWVRIFDVKDQGDUHVXEMHFWWRDQLQVLJQLILFDQW
ULVNRIFKDQJHLQYDOXH
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K  5HODWHGSDUWLHV

3DUWLHV DUH FRQVLGHUHG WR EH UHODWHG LI RQH SDUW\ KDV WKH DELOLW\ WR FRQWURO GLUHFWO\ RU LQGLUHFWO\  WKH
RWKHU SDUW\ RU H[HUFLVH VLJQLILFDQW LQIOXHQFH RYHU WKH RWKHU SDUW\ LQ PDNLQJ ILQDQFLDO DQG RSHUDWLQJ
GHFLVLRQV

L  3URYLVLRQV

3URYLVLRQV DUH UHFRJQLVHG ZKHQ WKH &RPSDQ\ KDV D SUHVHQW REOLJDWLRQ OHJDO RU FRQVWUXFWLYH  DV D
UHVXOWRIDSDVW HYHQWLW LVSUREDEOHWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\ZLOO EH UHTXLUHGWRVHWWOH WKHREOLJDWLRQDQGD
UHOLDEOHHVWLPDWHFDQEHPDGHRIWKHDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQ

,QWHUHVWLQFRPH

M


,QWHUHVWLQFRPHLVUHFRJQLVHGRQDQDFFUXDOEDVLV

N

7D[DWLRQ


,QFRPHWD[H[SHQVHFRPSULVHVFXUUHQWDQGGHIHUUHGWD[&XUUHQWWD[DQGGHIHUUHGWD[DUHUHFRJQLVHG
LQ SURILW RU ORVV H[FHSW WR WKH H[WHQW WKDW LW UHODWHV WR LWHPV UHFRJQLVHG GLUHFWO\ LQ HTXLW\ RU LQ RWKHU
FRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH

&XUUHQWWD[LVWKHH[SHFWHGWD[SD\DEOHRUUHFHLYDEOHRQWKHWD[DEOHLQFRPHRUORVVIRUWKH\HDUXVLQJ
WD[ UDWHVHQDFWHG RUVXEVWDQWLYHO\ HQDFWHGDWWKHHQG RIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRGDQGDQ\DGMXVWPHQW WR
WD[SD\DEOHLQUHVSHFWRISUHYLRXV\HDUV

'HIHUUHGWD[LVUHFRJQLVHGLQUHVSHFWRIWHPSRUDU\GLIIHUHQFHVEHWZHHQWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVRIDVVHWV
DQG OLDELOLWLHV IRU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ SXUSRVHV DQG WKH DPRXQWV XVHG IRU WD[DWLRQ SXUSRVHV 'HIHUUHG
WD[ LV QRW UHFRJQLVHG IRU WKH IROORZLQJ WHPSRUDU\ GLIIHUHQFHV WKH LQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLRQ RI DVVHWV RU
OLDELOLWLHV LQ D WUDQVDFWLRQ WKDW LV QRW D EXVLQHVV FRPELQDWLRQ DQG WKDW DIIHFWV QHLWKHU DFFRXQWLQJ QRU
WD[DEOH SURILW RU ORVV DQG GLIIHUHQFHV UHODWLQJ WR LQYHVWPHQWV LQ VXEVLGLDULHV DQG MRLQWO\ FRQWUROOHG
HQWLWLHVWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWWKH\ZLOOQRWUHYHUVHLQWKHIRUHVHHDEOHIXWXUH,QDGGLWLRQ
GHIHUUHG WD[ LV QRW UHFRJQLVHG IRU WD[DEOH WHPSRUDU\ GLIIHUHQFHV DULVLQJ RQ WKH LQLWLDO UHFRJQLWLRQ RI
JRRGZLOO 'HIHUUHG WD[ LV PHDVXUHG DW WKH WD[ UDWHV WKDW DUH H[SHFWHG WR EH DSSOLHG WR WHPSRUDU\
GLIIHUHQFHVZKHQWKH\UHYHUVHEDVHGRQWKHODZVWKDWKDYHEHHQHQDFWHGRUVXEVWDQWLYHO\HQDFWHGE\
WKHHQGRIWKHUHSRUWLQJSHULRG

'HIHUUHGWD[DVVHWV DQGOLDELOLWLHVDUH RIIVHWLIWKHUHLV DOHJDOO\ HQIRUFHDEOHULJKW WRRIIVHW FXUUHQWWD[
OLDELOLWLHV DQG DVVHWV DQG WKH\ UHODWH WR LQFRPH WD[HV OHYLHG E\ WKH VDPH WD[ DXWKRULW\ RQ WKH VDPH
WD[DEOHHQWLW\RURQGLIIHUHQWWD[HQWLWLHVEXWWKH\LQWHQGWRVHWWOHFXUUHQWWD[OLDELOLWLHVDQGDVVHWVRQD
QHWEDVLVRUWKHLUWD[DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVZLOOEHUHDOLVHGVLPXOWDQHRXVO\

$ GHIHUUHG WD[ DVVHW LV UHFRJQLVHG IRU XQXVHG WD[ ORVVHV WD[ FUHGLWV DQG GHGXFWLEOH WHPSRUDU\
GLIIHUHQFHV WR WKHH[WHQW WKDW LW LV SUREDEOH WKDWIXWXUH WD[DEOH SURILWV ZLOO EH DYDLODEOH DJDLQVW ZKLFK
WKH\FDQEHXWLOLVHG'HIHUUHGWD[DVVHWVDUHUHYLHZHGDWHQGRIHDFKUHSRUWLQJSHULRGDQGDUHUHGXFHG
WRWKHH[WHQWWKDWLWLVQRORQJHUSUREDEOHWKDWWKHUHODWHGWD[EHQHILWZLOOEHUHDOLVHG

O





6WDWHGFDSLWDO

2UGLQDU\VKDUHVDUHFODVVLILHGDVHTXLW\


P  5HFHLYDEOHV

5HFHLYDEOHVDUHFDUULHGDWDQWLFLSDWHGUHDOLVDEOHYDOXH$QHVWLPDWHLVPDGHIRUGRXEWIXOUHFHLYDEOHV
EDVHGRQDUHYLHZRIDOORXWVWDQGLQJDPRXQWVDW\HDUHQG%DGGHEWVDUHZULWWHQRIIGXULQJWKH\HDULQ
ZKLFKWKH\DUHLGHQWLILHG
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Q  ,PSDLUPHQWRIDVVHWV

$WHQGRIHDFKUHSRUWLQJSHULRGWKH&RPSDQ\UHYLHZVWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVRILWVDVVHWVWRGHWHUPLQH
ZKHWKHU WKHUH LV DQ\ LQGLFDWLRQ WKDW WKRVH DVVHWV KDYH VXIIHUHG DQ\ LPSDLUPHQW ORVV  :KHQ DQ
LQGLFDWLRQRILPSDLUPHQWORVVH[LVWVWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHDVVHWLVDVVHVVHGDQGZULWWHQGRZQWR
LWVUHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQW


<


7$;$7,21







 
 
 
 






,QFRPHWD[

 
 
 
 
7KH&RPSDQ\LVXQGHUFXUUHQWODZVDQGUHJXODWLRQVOLDEOHWRSD\LQFRPHWD[RQLWVQHWLQFRPHDWDUDWHRI7KH&RPSDQ\
LV KRZHYHU HQWLWOHG WR D WD[ FUHGLW HTXLYDOHQW WR WKH KLJKHU RI DFWXDO IRUHLJQ WD[ VXIIHUHG RU  RI 0DXULWLXV WD[ SD\DEOH LQ
UHVSHFWRILWVIRUHLJQVRXUFHLQFRPHWD[WKXVUHGXFLQJLWVPD[LPXPHIIHFWLYHWD[UDWHWR





































 
 
 
 
1R0DXULWLDQFDSLWDOJDLQWD[LVSD\DEOHRQSURILWVDULVLQJIURPVDOHRIVHFXULWLHVDQGDQ\GLYLGHQGVDQGUHGHPSWLRQSURFHHGV
SDLGE\WKH&RPSDQ\WRLWVVKDUHKROGHUVZLOOEHH[HPSWLQ0DXULWLXVIURPDQ\ZLWKKROGLQJWD[


 
 
 
 
$W0DUFKWKH&RPSDQ\KDGDFFXPXODWHGWD[ORVVHVRI86' 86' ZKLFKZLOOEHFDUULHGIRUZDUG
DQGDYDLODEOHIRUVHWRIIDJDLQVWIXWXUHWD[DEOHSURILWVDVIROORZV




















7D[ORVVHV



















86'



8SWR\HDUHQGLQJ0DUFK















8SWR\HDUHQGLQJ0DUFK
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'HIHUUHGWD[



 
 
 



$GHIHUUHGWD[DVVHWRI86' 86' KDVQRWEHHQUHFRJQLVHGLQUHVSHFWRIWKHWD[ORVVHVFDUULHGIRUZDUGDVWKH
GLUHFWRUVFRQVLGHUWKDWLWLVQRWSUREDEOHWKDWIXWXUHWD[DEOHSURILWZLOOEHDYDLODEOHDJDLQVWZKLFKWKHXQXVHGWD[ORVVHVFDQEH
XWLOLVHG












7KHUHFRQFLOLDWLRQEHWZHHQWKHDFWXDOWD[H[SHQVHDQGWKHWD[FDOFXODWHGDWWKHDSSOLFDEOHUDWHRIIRUWKH\HDUSHULRGXQGHU
UHYLHZLVDVIROORZV










/RVVEHIRUHWD[DWLRQ


























7D[DWWKHUDWHRI



7D[HIIHFWRI

























86'







86'






  




  



















  



  













([HPSWLQFRPH







  



  



1RQWD[DEOHLQFRPH







  







1RQDOORZDEOHH[SHQVH















8QDXWKRULVHGGHGXFWLRQV























 







  

  





7D[ORVVHVEURXJKWIRUZDUG

















  



  



7D[FUHGLWRI















'HIHUUHGWD[QRWUHFRJQLVHG















7D[FKDUJH
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,QYHVWPHQWVLQVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQLHV





















































































$WEHJLQQLQJRIWKH\HDUSHULRG















,PSDLUPHQWGXULQJWKH\HDUSHULRG















$WHQGRIWKH\HDUSHULRG



































7KHGHWDLOVRIWKHLQYHVWPHQWVLQVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQLHVDVDW0DUFKDUHDVIROORZV



1DPHRI
VXEVLGLDU\
FRPSDQLHV
















3ULQFLSDO









LQFRUSRUDWLRQ



DFWLYLW\



+ROGLQJ

















3URWHXV









3HWURFKHPLFDOV







3ULYDWH/LPLWHG















&RXQWU\RI









&HUWXV
,QYHVWPHQW 
7UDGLQJ 6 3WH
/WG















6LQJDSRUH



6LQJDSRUH





7UDGLQJ
0DQXIDFWXUHRI
1RUPDO3DUDIILQ












86'
































()'(

86'



86'





  









 


































&RVW





 







86'















)DLUYDOXH

86'






















86'






















































































 























































7KHGLUHFWRUVDUHRIRSLQLRQWKDWWKHUHLVQRLPSDLUPHQWRQWKHYDOXHRIWKHLQYHVWPHQWRI&HUWXV,QYHVWPHQW 7UDGLQJ 6 3WH/WGDW0DUFKDQG
WKDWWKHIDLUYDOXHDSSUR[LPDWHVDWOHDVWLWVFRVW













7KHGLUHFWRUVKDYHUHYLHZHGWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGSHUIRUPDQFHRI3URWHXV3HWURFKHPLFDOV3ULYDWH/LPLWHG7KH\DUHRIWKHRSLQLRQWKDWWKHHVWLPDWHG
UHFRYHUDEOHDPRXQWRIWKHLQYHVWPHQWLQ3URWHXV3HWURFKHPLFDOV3ULYDWH/LPLWHGZDVOHVVWKDQLWVFDUU\LQJDPRXQWDQGDQLPSDLUPHQWRI86'ZDV
UHFRJQLVHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
1RFRQVROLGDWHGDFFRXQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGDVWKHGLUHFWRUVRIWKH&RPSDQ\KDYHWDNHQDGYDQWDJHRIWKHH[HPSWLRQXQGHUWKH0DXULWLDQ&RPSDQLHV$FW
 ZKLFK H[HPSWV D FRPSDQ\ KROGLQJ D *OREDO %XVLQHVV /LFHQFH  IURP SUHSDULQJ FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZKHQ LW LV D ZKROO\ RZQHG RU D
YLUWXDOO\ZKROO\RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\RIDQ\FRPSDQ\LQFRUSRUDWHGRXWVLGH0DXULWLXV7KH&RPSDQ\LVDZKROO\RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\RI7DPLOQDGX3HWURSURGXFWV
/LPLWHGDFRPSDQ\LQFRUSRUDWHGLQ,QGLD
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$

,QYHVWPHQWLQDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\

































&RVWDWEHJLQQLQJRIWKH\HDUSHULRG








































86'

















 

,PSDLUPHQWGXULQJWKH\HDUSHULRG















  





$WHQGRIWKH\HDUSHULRG















 












()'(
86'







 
 
,QYHVWPHQWLQDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\ FRQWLQXHG 


















 
7KHGHWDLOVRIWKHLQYHVWPHQWLQDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\DVDW0DUFKDUHDVIROORZV





































































1DPHRI













DVVRFLDWHG



&RXQWU\RI









FRPSDQ\



LQFRUSRUDWLRQ



KROGLQJ




















*XOI
3HWUR
3URGXFW
&RPSDQ\
(&















$WFRVW











$WIDLUYDOXH











86'



86'



86'



86'



















































%DKUDLQ


































*XOI 3HWUR 3URGXFW &RPSDQ\ (& LV HQJDJHG LQ WKH GHYHORSPHQW FRQVWUXFWLRQ RSHUDWLRQ RI DQG LQYHVWPHQW LQ 1RUPDO 3DUDILQ DQG
$VVRFLDWHG/LQHDU$ON\O%HQ]HQH /$% 3URMHFWV
7KHGLUHFWRU VKDYHUHYLHZHGWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGSHUIRUPDQFHRI*XOI3HWUR3URGXFW&RPSDQ\(&7KH\DUHRIWKHRSLQLRQWKDW
WKH HVWLPDWHG UHFRYHUDEOH DPRXQW RI WKH LQYHVWPHQW LQ *XOI 3HWUR 3URGXFW &RPSDQ\ (& ZDV OHVV WKDQ LWV FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW DQG DQ
LPSDLUPHQWRI86'ZDVUHFRJQLVHG






$GYDQFHVDQGSUHSD\PHQWV



































 
 













3UHSD\PHQWV 











,QWHUHVWUHFHLYDEOHIURPVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQ\



















86'
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ϭϴ






$GYDQFHWRDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\ VHHQRWH LL 
5HFHLYDEOHIURPDVVRFLDWHGFRPSDQ\





$GYDQFHVWRVXEVLGLDU\FRPSDQLHV VHHQRWH L 
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&DVKDWEDQN 
























 























:@

&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV








)L[HGGHSRVLWVDQGRWKHULQYHVWPHQWV
 


































6WDWHGFDSLWDO



























86'
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RUGLQDU\VKDUHVRI86'HDFK







7KHRUGLQDU\VKDUHVFDUU\





































E

WKHULJKWWRDQHTXDOVKDUHLQGLYLGHQGVDXWKRULVHGE\WKH%RDUGDQG

F

WKHULJKWWRDQHTXDOVKDUHLQWKHGLVWULEXWLRQRIWKHVXUSOXVDVVHWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\




























2WKHUSD\DEOHV
$FFUXDOV





















D






3D\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV






WKHULJKWWRRQHYRWHRQDSROODWDPHHWLQJRIWKH&RPSDQ\RQDQ\UHVROXWLRQ










 










,VVXHGDQGIXOO\SDLGZLWKQRSDUYDOXH





 





























86'




86'

 
 



 








 
 
 

3URWHXV3HWURFKHPLFDOV3ULYDWH/LPLWHGDVXEVLGLDU\RIWKH&RPSDQ\KDGLQFXUUHGH[SHQVHVDPRXQWLQJWR86'RQ
EHKDOIRIWKH&RPSDQ\DQGKDGZDLYHGWKHDPRXQWUHFHLYDEOHIURPWKH&RPSDQ\GXULQJWKH\HDU
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Certus Investment and Trading (S) Private Limited

Director’s Report
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
The director is pleased to present its report to the members together with the audited financial statements of Certus
Investment and Trading (S) Private Limited for the financial year ended on 31 March 2013.
1.

DIRECTOR
The director holding office at the date of this report is : James Methodius s/o Cyril Methods

2.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTOR TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES
Neither at the end nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose
object are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

3.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES
No director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, share options, warrants or
debentures of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the financial year or end of the
financial year.

4.

DIRECTOR’S CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to
receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director, or with
a firm of which the director is a member, or with a Company in which the director has a substantial financial
interest.

5.

OPTIONS TO TAKE UP UNISSUED SHARES
During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the Company was granted.

6.

OPTIONS EXERCISED
During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company issued by virtue of the exercise of options to take
up unissued shares.

7.

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION
At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under option.

8.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The independent auditor, Sashi Kala Devi Associate, has expressed its willingness to accept reappointment as
auditor.
James Methodius s/o Cyril Methodis
Director
Singapore
15 May 2013
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Statement by Director
_________________________________________________________________________________________
I, James Methodius s/o Cyril Methodis, being the sole-director of Certus Investment and Trading (S) Private
Limited, do hereby state that,
(a)

the accompanying statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a
true and fair view of the sate of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2013 and the results of the
business, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(b)

at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to
pay its debts as and when they fall due.

James Methodius s/o Cyril Methodis
Director
Singapore
15 May 2013
____________________________________________________________________________________
Independent Auditor’s Report
to the member of Certus Investment and Trading (S) Private Limited
(Co. Reg. No: 200414622K)
Report on the Financial Statements
We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of Certus Investment and Trading (S)
Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013,
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorized and that they are recorded as necessary to
permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheet and to maintain
accountability of assets.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2013 and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the
year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been
properly kept in accordance with the provision of the Act.

Sashi Kala Devi Associates
Public Accountants and
Certified Publics Accountants
Singapore
15 May 2013
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Certus Investment and Trading (S) Private Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 200414622K)
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2013
______________________________________________________________________________________
Note
Non-current Assets
Plant and equipment
Capital project in progress

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Amount due from ultimate
holding company
Cash and cash equivalents

3
4

31.3.2013
US$

31.3.2013
US$
(Reclassified)

----

----

1.1.2011
US$
(Reclassified)
-383,109
383,109

-962,439
6,205,080

-1,551,290
6,095,180

33,400
1,262,479
6,095,180

16,050
14,106
7,197,675

16,050
109,070
7,771,590

16,050
46,357
7,453,466

7,000

7,000

16,528

2,155,758

2,759,232

2,514,708

3,526,375

3,495,797

3,495,797

5,689,133

6,262,029

6,027,033

Net current assets

1,508,542

1,509,561

1,426,433

Net assets

1,508,542

1,509,561

1,809,542

1,875,340
(366,798)
1,508,542

1,875,340
(365,779)
1,509,561

1,875,340
(65,798)
1,809,542

Currents Liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Amount due to ultimate holding
Company
Amount due to immediate holding
company

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Accumulated losses
Total equity

5
6
7
8

9
10

11

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the financial year ended 31 March 2013
_____________________________________________________________________________________________

Note

Revenue

12

Cost of revenue

1.4.2012
to
31.3.2013
US$

3,920,650

4,390,372

(3,917,500)

(4,387,912)

3,150

2,460

39,900

108,247

(13,491)

(398,849)

Gross profit
Other operating income

13

Administrative expenses
Other charge –
Foreign exchange difference – loss

--

Finance cost – Loan interest
Loss before tax

14

Income tax expense

15

(33)
(30,578)

(11,806)

(1,019)

(299,981)

--

Loss after tax

-(1,019)

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for the year

1.1.2011
to
31.3.2012
US$
(Reclassified)

--

(299,981)
--

(1,019)

(299,981)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the financial year ended 31 March 2013
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Shares
capital
US$
Balance at 1 January 2011 (reclassified)
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Balance at 31 March 2012 (Reclassified)
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 31 March 2013

1,875,340
-1,875,340
-1,875,340

Accumulated
losses
US$

Total
US$

(65,798)

1,809,542

(299,981)

(299,981)

(365,779)

1,509,561

(1,019)

(1,019)

(366,798)

1,508,542)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the financial year ended 31 March 2013
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Note

2012
US$
(Reclassified)

2013
US$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax

(1,019)

(299,981)

--

(8,247)

(1,019)

(308,228)

--

383,109

Adjustment for:
Interest income
Operating loss before working capital changes
Decrease in capital project in progress
Decrease / (increase) in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase / (decrease) in other payables
Cash generated from / (used in) from operations
Interest received
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) operating activities

--

33,400

478,951

(288,811)

--

(9,528)

477,932

(190,058)

--

8,247

477,932

(181,811)

(603,474)

244,524

30,578

--

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Decrease) / increase in amount due to ultimate holding company
Increase in amount due to immediate holding company
Loan to third party
Proceeds from loan repayment from third party
Decrease in loan from immediate holding company
Repayment of loan from amount due to immediate holding company
Net cash flows (used in) / generated from financing activities

(10,000,000)

--

10,000,000

--

10,000,000

--

(10,000,000)

--

(572,896)

244,524

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(94,964)

62,713

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

109,070

46,357

14,106

109,070

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

8

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
The notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.
1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The company is a private company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and its immediate
holding company is Certus Investment and Trading Limited incorporated in Mauritius and ultimate holding
company is Tamilnadu Petroproducts Limited incorporated in India.
The registered office of the Company is located at 31 Cantonment Road, Singapore 089747 and principal place
of business is located at 8 Temasek Boulevard, # 17-03, Suntec Tower 3, Singapore 038988.
The principal activities of the Company are carrying on business of sales of industrial chemical.

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(FRS) as required by the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise described in
the accounting policies below.
The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USD or US$) which is the Company’s
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest one-dollar unless otherwise stated.
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used
in the previous financial year except during the current financial year beginning 1 April 2012, the Company
has adopted all applicable new and revised FRS and INT FRS that are relevant to its operations and
effective for the current financial year. The adoption of these new and revised FRS and INT FRS did not
result in any changes to the Company’s accounting policies and had no material effect on the amounts
reported for the current or prior financial years.
Standards issued but not yet effective
The Company has not adopted the following standards and interpretations which are potentially relevant to
the Company that have been issued but not yet effective
Effective date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)
Amendment to FRS 1
– Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
FRS 19 Employee benefits
FRS 113 Fair value measurement

1 July 2012
1 January 2013
1 January 2013

Improvement to FRSs issued in 2012:
Amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

1 January 2013

The director expects that the adoption of the standards and interpretations above will have no material
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
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(b) Significant accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumption that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities, and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.
•

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
There were no material key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

•

Judgement made in applying accounting policies

There were no material judgements made by management in the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.
(c) Functional and foreign currency
The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates i.e. functional currency, to be United States Dollars (USD or US$).
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions is foreign currencies are measured in USD and are recorded on initial recognition at exchange
rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are re-translated to the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of initial recognition. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
end of the reporting period are recognized in profit or loss.
(d) Capital project in progress
Capital project in progress is stated at cost. Expenditure relating to the construction of a Normal Paraffin
(NP) plant is capitalized when incurred up to the completion of construction. No depreciation is provided on
capital project in progress.
(e) Plant and equipment
All items of plan and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
the plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying plant and equipment. The cost of an item of a plant and equipment is recognized
as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced
in intervals, the Company recognize such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection in performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The cost of an asset
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comprises its purchased price and nay directly attributable cost of brining the asset to working condition for
its intended use. Expenditure for additions, improvement and renewal are capitalized and expenditure for
maintenance and repairs are charged to profit or loss.
Depreciation computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Computers

-

3 Years

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.
For acquisition and disposal of plant and equipment, depreciation is provided in the month of acquisition and
no depreciation is provided in the month of disposal.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjust
prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.
(f)

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provision of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships defined by FRS 39. Derivatives including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.
The Company has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition a fair value through
profit or loss.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured a fair
value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognized in
profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
exchange differences, interest and dividend income.

(ii)

Held-to-maturity investment
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified a
as held-to-maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to
maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
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loss when the held-to-maturity investments are derecognized or impaired, and through the
amortization process.
(iii)

Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and
through the amortisation process.

(iv)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for sale financial assets are financial assets including equity and debt securities. Equity
investment classified as available-for-sale are those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated a fair value through profit or loss.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Any
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial asset are recognized in other
comprehensive income, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary instruments and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognized in
profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset is
derecognized.
Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has
expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in it entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.
Regular way purchase and sale of a financial assets
All regular way purchases and sales or financial assets are recognized or derecognized on the trade
date i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sale or financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

(g) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired.
(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant of not, it
includes the asset in a company of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on finance assets carried at amortised cost has
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
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interest rate. If a loan has variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. The loss is recognized in the profit or loss.
When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced
directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amount charged to the allowance
account is written of against the carrying value of the financial asset.
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has
incurred, the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtors and default or significant delay in payments.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognized in profit or loss.
(ii) Financial assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at cost has been
incurred (such as significant adverse changes in the business environment where the issuer operates,
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer) the impairment loss is
recognized and the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of impairment loss
includes (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor, (ii) information about significant
changes with an adverse effective that have taken place in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the issuer operates, and with indication that the cost of the investment in equity
instrument may not be recovered; and (iii) a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
If an available-for-sale financial assets is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its
cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in profit or loss, is transferred from other comprehensive income and recognized
in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses in respect of equity instruments are not recognized in
profit or loss; increase in their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income.
(h) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial
asset, other than investment property accounted for at fair value and inventories is impaired. If any such a
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset ir required, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generated
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the case generation unit to which the asset belongs.
The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss in
profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease.
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(i)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, and in the case of financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
(i)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss.

(ii) Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.
(j)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank.

(k) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and trade payables are normally settled on 30 to 60 days’
terms while other payables have an average term of three months.
(l)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, when discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.
(m) Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and Company if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Company;
(ii) Has significant influence over the Company; or
(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company or of a parent of the
Company
(b) An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies.:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same groups (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or
an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the Company;
The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(n) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. All borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur except to the extent that they are
capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of that asset.
(o) Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding sales taxes or duty. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognised:
(i)

Sales of goods
Revenue from sale is recognised upon the transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the
goods to the customer. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of
goods.

(ii)

Interest
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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(p) Taxes
(i)

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
Current income taxes are recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that tax relates to items
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Management periodically evalutes positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
aplicalbe tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deffered tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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3.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Computers
US$
Cost:
At 1 January 2011
Additions
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012
Additions
At 31 March 2013

1,409
--

1,409
--

1,409
--

1,409
--

1,409

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2011
Charge for the year
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012
Charge for the year
At 31 March 2013

1,409

1,409
--

1,409
--

1,409
--

1,409
--

1,409

Net carrying amount :
At 31 March 2013
At 31 March 2013

4.

Total
US$

1,409

--

--

--

--

CAPITAL PROJECT IN PROGRESS
2013
US$
At beginning of the year / period
Written off during the year / period
At end of the year / period

----

2012
US$
383,109
(383,109)
--

Capital project in progress represents costs incurred towards construction of a Normal Paraffin Plant (“Plant”) in
Singapore. However, the Plant does not seem to be commercially viable due to increase in price of raw materials
and infrastructure costs. Hence the capital project in progress had been written off in prior years.
5.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
2013
US$
Trade receivables

962,439

2012
US$
1,551,290

Trade receivables are not-interest bearing and are generally settles as per terms mutually agreed between the
parties. Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represents their fair values on
initial recognition.
The Company assesses at the end of each reprting period whether there is objective evidence that trade and
other receivables are impaired.
An allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
receivable, probability that the receivable will enter bankruptcy of financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The amount of the allowance is recognised in the profit and loss.

17

Certus Investment and Trading (S) Private Limited

Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Company has trade receivables amounting to US$ 962,379 (2012: US$1,551,289) that are past due at the
end of the reporting period but not impaired. These receivables are unsecured and the analysis of their aging at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:
Trade receivables past due but not impaired:
Not more than 30 days
31 to 60 days
More than 120 days

6.

--962,439
962,439

382,760
206,150
962,380
1,551,290

6,165,180
39,900
6,205,080

6,095,180
-6,095,180

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Short term advances
Interest receivables from third party

At the end of the reporting period, the short term advances amounting to US$ 6,095,180 to a third party has
arranged for repayment of US$ 2.5 million before the next financial year and the balance is subjected to interest
rate of 0.5 % per annum and to be repayable on demand and to be settled in cash.
During the financial year, the company has provided a loan interest bearing of 0.42 % per annum of US$10
million to a third party and this amount was fully paid during the year.
7.

AMOUNT DUE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The amount due from ultimate holding company is trade related, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand and to be settled in cash.

8.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currency is a follows:
Singapore dollar

9.

9,818

3,107

AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The amount due is trade related, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settled in cash.

10. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
The amount due is not-trade related, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settle in cash.
During the financial year, the immediate holding company has provided a loan interest bearing of 0.32 % per
annum of US$10 million and this amount was fully repaid during the year.
As at the end of the reporting period, the loan interest for the US$10 million has not been repaid.
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11. SHARE CAPITAL
2013
Number of
shares
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares

1,916,642

2012
US$
1,875,340

Number of
shares
1,916,642

US$
1,875,340

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All
ordinary shares have no par value, carry one vote per share without restrictions.
12. REVENUE
Revenue represents income from the sales of chemicals and related products in the normal course of business.
13. OTHER INCOME

2013
US$
Amounts waived by:
– Related party
– Outside party
Interest income

--39,900
39,900

01.01.2011
to
31.03.2012
US$
88,772
11,228
8,247
108,247

14. LOSS BEFORE TAX
The following items have been included in arriving at loss before tax:
Purchases
Capital project written-off

3,917,500
-3,917,500

4,387,912
383,109
4,771,021

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(i) Major components of income tax credit
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 are:
Statement of comprehensive income:
Current income tax
---

---

(ii) Relationship between tax credit and accounting loss
A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting loss multiplied by the applicable tax
rate for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
Loss before tax
Tax expense on loss before tax at 17 % (2012:17%)

(1,019)

(299,981)

(173)

(50,997)
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Adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses
Tax exemptions
Deferred tax assets not recognized for current year
Utilisation of deferred tax assets previously not recognized
Total tax expense

5,198
(2,855)
-(2,170)
--

--50,997
---

The Company has remaining unutilized tax losses and capital allowance of approximately US$448,810
(2012:US$ 463,260) that are available for offset against future taxable profits of the Company in which the losses
arose for which no deferred tax asset is recognized due to uncertainty of its recoverability. The use of these tax
losses is subject to the agreement with the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore.
16. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
In additions to those related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial settlements, the following
significant transactions between the Company and related parties that took place during the year at terms agreed
between the parties during the financial year.
Significant related party transactions
In additions to those related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial settlements, the following
significant transactions between the Company and related parties that took place during the year at terms agreed
between the parties during the financial year.

Ultimate Holding Company
Purchase of goods
Immediate Holding company
Loan from immediate holding company

2013

01.01.2011
to
31.03.2012

US$

US$

3,917,500
10,000,000

4,387,912
--

17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The
key financial risks include liquidity risk, market risk, foreign currency risk, interest risk and credit risk. The
Company’s risk management policies focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to, where
appropriate, minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. The Company
does not have any written financial risk management polices and guidelines and there has been no change to
the company’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
The following sections provide details regarding the Company’s exposure to the financial risks associated with
financial instruments held in the ordinary course of business and the objectives, policies and processes for the
management of these risks.
(i)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to
shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from possible mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manage liquidity risk by ensuring the availability of
fund through its holding company and cash flow generated from operating activities.
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of reporting
period, based on contractual undiscounted payments.
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2013
Other payables
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amount due to immediate holding company

2012
Other payables
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amount due to immediate holding company

Total

Within one
year

US$

US$

7,000
2,155,758
3,526,375
5,689,133

7,000
2,155,758
3,526,375
5,689,133

7,000
2,759,232
3,495,797
6,262,029

7,000
2,759,232
3,495,797
6,262,029

The Company ensures that there are adequate funds to meet all its obligations in a timely and cost-effective
manner.
(ii) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rate, will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.
(iii) Foreign currency risk
The Company has transactional currency exposures arising from purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than functional currency of the Company.
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign currencies.
As at the end of reporting period, the Company’s foreign currency exposures are insignificant.
(iv) Interest rate risk
The sensitivity analysis for changes in interest rate is not disclosed as the effect on the statement of
comprehensive income is considered not significant.
(v) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty
default on its obligations. The Company has a significant exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade
and other receivables. The Company was exposed to concentration of credit risk as the Company deals only
with one customer. Information regarding for assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note
5 and 6. For other financial assets including cash and cash equivalents, the Company minimise credit risk
exposure by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

21

Certus Investment and Trading (S) Private Limited

18. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following table summarises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the
reporting year by FRS 39 categories:

2013
US$
Loans and receivables
Trade receivable
Other receivables
Amount due from ultimate holding company
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other payables
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amount due to immediate holding company

2012
US$

962,439
6,205,080
16,050
14,106
7,197,675

1,551,290
6,095,180
16,050
109,070
7,771,590

7,000
2,155,758
3,526,375
5,689,133

7,000
2,759,232
3,495,797
6,262,029

19. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to
their short-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or
near the end of the reporting period.
However, the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at the end of the reporting period
would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company does not have any other financial instruments carried at fair
value.
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements represents
their respective net fair values due to the relative short-term maturity of these financial instruments.
20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintain a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.
The Company reviews its capital structure at least once annually to ensure that the Company will be able to
continue as a going concern. The capital structure of the Company comprises only of issued capital and retained
earnings. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2012. The Company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.
21. RECLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s financial statements to enhance comparability with
current year’s financial statements. As a result, certain line items have been amended on the face of the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity and the
related notes to the financial statements. Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with current year’s
presentation. The reclassifications were not significant.
The items reclassified were as follows:
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Previously
Reported
US$
Statement of Financial Position
Trade receivables
Short term advance
Other receivables
Amount due from ultimate holding company
Trade payables
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Other operating expenses
Other charges
Statement of Cash Flows
Increase in trade payables
Decrease in amount due to a related party

Reclassification
US$

After
reclassification
US$

1,567,340
6,095,180
--2,759,232
--

(16,050)
(6,095,180)
6,095,180
16,050
(2,759,232)
2,759,232

1,551,290
-6,095,180
16,050
-2,759,232

398,882
--

(33)
33

398,849
33

333,295
(88,771)
11,065,158

(333,295)
333,295
--

-244,524
11,065,158

The financial statements for 2013 cover the financial year from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013. The financial
statements for 2012 cover the fifteen months, from 1 January 2011 to 31 March 2012. As such, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and the related notes for the current
year and previous financial period are not comparable.
22. EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 2 April 2013, the immediate holding company provided a loan of US$ 10 million to the company with the
interest charge at 0.32 % per annum. At the same time, the Company loan the US$ 10 million to a third party
with the interest charge at 0.42 % per annum.
The trade debtor will settle the outstanding balances of US$ 962,439 on or before 31 March 2014 either from the
collection or internal accruals. At the same time, there was repayment plan arranged with the third party for other
receivables amounting to US$6,095,180, where before 31 March 2014, the company will receive US$ 2,500,000.
23. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2013 were authorized for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the director on 15 May 2013.
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Proteus Petrochemicals Private Limited

Director’s Report
__________________________________________________________________________________________
The director is pleased to present the report to the member together with the audited financial statements of Proteus
Petrochemicals Private Limited for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.
1.

DIRECTOR
The director of the Company in office at the date of this report is :
Ashwin Chidambaram Muthiah

2.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTOR TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement
whose object is to enable the director of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares
or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate.

3.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES
No director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, share options, warrants or
debentures of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of financial year or at the end of
financial year.

4.

DIRECTOR’S CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to
receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director, or with
a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial
interest.

5.

OPTIONS TO TAKE UP UNISSUED SHARES
During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the Company was granted.

6.

OPTION EXERCISED
During the financial year, there were no shares of the Company issued by virtue of the exercise of an option to
take up unissued shares.

7.

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION
At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under option.

8.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The independent auditor, Sashi Kala Devi Associates has expressed its willingness to accept reappointment as
auditor.
Ashwin Chidambaram Muthiah
Director
Singapore
3 April 2013
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Statement by Director
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
I, Awhwin Chidambaram Muthiah, being the sole director of Proteus Petrochemicals Private Limited, do hereby state
that,
(a)

The accompanying balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
cash flow statement together with notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2013 and the results of the business, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company for the year ended; and

(b)

At the date of this statement, there are reasonable ground to believe that the company would be able to pay its
debts as and when they fall due as the immediate holding company has undertaken to provide financial support
to the company to meet its liabilities.

Ashwin Chidambaram Muthiah
Director
Singapore
3 April 2013
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
SASHI KALA DEVI ASSOCIATES
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Proteus Petrochemicals Private Limited
(Co. Reg. No. 200606866R)
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Proteus Petrochemicals Private Limited (the “Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2013, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorized and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and
fair profit and loss account and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express and opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualification audit opinion.
Basis of Qualified Opinion
We are unable to obtain an independent confirmation from the other payables amounting to US$599,450 as stated in
Note 9 to the financial statements and there were no alternative audit procedure that we could carry out to satisfy
ourselves as to the completeness and validity as recorded in the financial statements.
Qualified Opinion
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial
statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2013 and the
results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of matters
We draw attention to note 1 in the financial statements. The Company incurred a net loss of US$28,289 during the
financial year ended 31 March 2013, and as at that date, the Company’s total and current liabilities exceeded its total
and current assets by US$4,800,900 and US$6,801,807 respectively. The validity of the going concern assumption
on which the financial statements are prepared depends on the continual financial support of the immediate holding
company. In the event that there is no such financial support, the going concern basis would be invalid and provision
would have to be made for any loss on realization of the Company’s assets and further costs which might arise.
Other matters
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 were audited by another auditor whose report dated
30 July 2012 expressed an unqualified opinions on those statements.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
Sashi Kala Devi Associates
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore
3 April 2013
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Note

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Deferred finance costs
Deposits

31.3.2012
US$
(reclassified)

1.1.2011
US$
(reclassified)

907
-2,000,000
2,000,907

10,852
-2,000,000
2,010,852

3,417,561
889,842
-4,307,403

6
7
8

671
-644,018
644,689

229,547
592
468,998
699,137

1,280,557
100,000
11,378,340
12,758,897

9

1,521,496

1,535,703

2,579,226

10

5,925,000

5,925,000

15,995,950

11

-7,446,496

21,897
7,482,600

56,927
18,632,103

Net Current liabilities

(6,801,807)

(6,783,463)

(5,873,206)

Net liabilities

(4,800,900)

(4,772,611)

(1,565,803)

300,000
(5,100,900)
(4,800,900)

300,000
(5,072,611)
(4,772,611)

300,000
(1,865,803)
(1,565,803)

Current assets
Other receivables
Amounts due from a related company
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables
Amount due to immediate holding
company
Amount due to ultimate holding
company

Equity attributable to equity
holder of the Company
Share capital
Accumulated losses
Equity deficits

4

31.3.2013
US$

5

12

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the financial year ended 31 March 2013
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
Note

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Loss before tax
Income tax expense
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for the year

1.4.2012
to
31.3.2013
US$

---13

6,442
(34,731)
(28,289)
-(28,289)
-(28,289)

14
15

1.1.2011
To
31.3.2012
US$

---2,712,626
(5,918,736)
(3,206,110)
(698)
(3,206,808)
-(3,206,808)

Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 March 2013
Share
Capital
US$
Balance at 1 April 2011
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 31 March 2012
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 31 March 2013

300,000
-300,000
-300,000

Accumulated
Losses
US$
(1,865,803)
(3,206,808)
(5,072,611)
(28,289)
(5,100,900)

Total
US$
(1,565,803)
(3,206,808)
(4,772,611)
(28,289)
(4,800,900)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

6

Proteus Petrochemicals Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended 31 March 2013
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
1.4.2012
to
31.3.2013
US$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense
Depreciation
Interest income
Realised fair value gain of derivatives
Plant and equipment written off
Deferred finance costs written off
Allowance for impairment of an amount due from a related
Company
Gain on settlement of outstanding payable to a third party
Waiver or debt by related corporations
Operating loss before working capital changes
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in other payables
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Income tax paid
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase of plant and equipment
Proceeds from settlement of currency forwards
Interest received
Net cash flows from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from equity loan
Repayment of loan to immediate holding company
Decrease in amount due from a related company
Decrease in amount due to a ultimate holding company
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalent at end of year

(28,289)
--

1.1.2011
to
31.03.2012
US$

(3,206,110)

----

698
19,093
(17,038)
(818,089)
3,391,224
889,842

--

100,000

---

(1,586,434)
(105,979)
(1,332,793)
(976,000)
543,00
(1,765,793)
(698)
1,766,491

10,344
(2,331)

(20,276)
228,876
(14,207)
194,393
-194,393

(399)
-2,331
1,932

---

(4,618)
818,089
43,678
857,149

-(10,000,000)
592
(21,897)
(21,305)

-(10,000,000)

175,020
468,998
644,018

(10,909,342)
11,378,340
468,998

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note to the Financial Statements – 31 March 2013
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.
1.

FUNDAMENTAL ACCOUNTING CONCEPT
The Company incurred a net loss of $28,289 during the financial year ended 31 March 2013 and as at that date,
the Company’s current and total liabilities exceeded its current and total assets by $6,801,807 and $4,800,900
respectively. These factors indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern depends on the immediate holding company undertaking to provide continuing financial support to
enable the Company to continue as a going concern.
If the Company is unable to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the Company may be
unable to discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business and adjustments may have to be made to
reflect the situation that assets may need to be realized other than in the normal course of business and at
amounts which could differ significantly from the amounts at which they are currently recorded in the balance
sheet. In addition, the Company may have to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities. No such adjustment have been made to these financial statements.

2.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is a private company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in Singapore. Its immediate
holding company is Certus Investment & Trading Limited, incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius and its
ultimate holding company is Tamilnadu Petroproducts Limited, incorporated in India.
The registered office of the Company is located at 31 Cantonment Road, Singapore 089747.
The principal activities of the Company are those of manufacturing of petrochemical products and the company
is currently exploring plan to establish a normal paraffin plant in another location. The company has not
commenced operation during the current financial year.

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(FRS) as required by the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where otherwise described
in the accounting policies below.
The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (USD or US$) and all values are rounded to
the nearest one-dollar unless otherwise stated.
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used
in the previous financial year except during the current financial year beginning 1 January 2012, the
Company have adopted all applicable new and revised FRS and INT FRS that are relevant to its operations
and effective for the current financial year. The adoption of these new and revised FRS and INT FRS does
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not result in any changes to the Company’s accounting policies and have no material effect on the amounts
reported for the current or prior financial years.
Standards issued but not yet effective
The Company has not adopted the following standards and interpretations which are potentially relevant to
the Company that have been issued but not yet effective:
Effective date
(Annual periods
beginning on or after)
Amendment to FRS1
– Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosure –
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
FRS 19 Employee Benefits
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement

1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013

Improvements to FRSs issued in 2012:
Amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

1 January 2013
1 January 2013

1 July 2012

(b) Significant accounting estimates and judgement
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumption that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities, and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.
•

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
(i)

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,
the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are
estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics.
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•

Judgement made in applying accounting policies
There were no material judgements made by management in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements.

(c) Functional and foreign currency
The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates i.e. functional currency, to be USD.
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in USD and are recorded on initial recognition at exchange
rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are re-translated to the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measure in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of initial recognition. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
end of the reporting period are recognized in profit or loss.
(d) Plant and equipment
All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
the plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying plant and equipment. The cost of an item of plant and equipment is recognized as
an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to initial recognition, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced in intervals, the Company recognize such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation, respectively. Like wise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for
its intended use. Expenditure for additions, improvement and renewal are capitalized and expenditure for
maintenance and repairs are charged to profit or loss.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Computer

-

3 years

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.
For acquisition and disposals of plant and equipment, depreciation is provided in the month of acquisition
and no depreciation is provided in the month of disposal.
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The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual valve, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
(e) Financials assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by FRS 39. Derivatives including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognized
on profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss.

(ii)

Held-to-maturity investment
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold the investments to
maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss when the held-to-maturity investments are derecognized or impaired, and through the
amortisation process.
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(iii)

Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, and
through the amortisation process.

(iv)

Available-for sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity investment classified as
available-for-sale are those, which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Any
gains or losses in the fair value of the financial asset are recognized in other comprehensive income,
except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and
interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset in derecognised.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has
expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
Regular way purchase and sale of a financial asset
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognized on the trade date
i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets the require delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.
(f)

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
is impaired.
(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asst’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. If a loan has variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. The loss is recognised in the profit or loss.
When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial asset is reduced
directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amount charged to the allowance
account is written off against the carrying value of the financial asset.
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment los on financial assets has been
incurred, the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
imparment loss in reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Financial assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at cost has been
incurred (such as significant adverse changes in the business environment where the issuer operates,
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer) the impairment loss is
recognised and the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of impairment
include (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor, (ii) information about significant changes
with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological market, economic or legal environment
in which the issuer operates, and indicates that the cost of the investment in equity instrument may not
be recovered; and (iii) a significant or prolonged declined in the fair value of the investment below its
cost. ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost
(net of any principle payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from other comprehensive income and recongnised
in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses in respect of equity instrument are not recognised in
profit or loss; increase in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
(g) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset,
other than investment property accounted for at fair value and inventories may be impaired. If any such an
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indication exists, or when an annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash generation unit to which the asset belongs.
The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss in
profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease.
(h) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus in the case of other financial liability not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
(i)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value. Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss.

(ii) Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized, and through the amortisation process.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an exiting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
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modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.
(i)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank.

(j)

Other payables
Other payables have an average term of six months.

(k) Provisions
Provision are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, when discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
(l)

Employee benefits
(i)

Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if the funds does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.
In particular, the Company makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) scheme
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. These contributions are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related service is performed.

(ii)

Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they accure to employees.
The estimated liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(m) Share capital
Ordinary shares
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.
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(n) Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding discounts, rebates and sales taxes or duty. The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognised:
(i)

Interest
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(o) Taxes
(i)

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.
Current income taxes are recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that tax relates to items
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward for unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax relating to items outside profit or los is recognised either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjust against goodwill on
acquisition.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxed relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
(iii) Goods and services tax
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (“GST”)
except:


Where the goods and services tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the goods and services tax is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and



Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of goods and services tax included.

The net amount of goods and service tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
(p) Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Company;
(ii) Has significant influence over the Company; or
(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
(b) An entity is related to the Company is any of the following conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member);
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or
an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the Company;
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
4.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Constructions
in progress
US$
Cost:
At 1 April 2011
Additions
Disposal
Written off
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012
Additions
At 31 March 2013

3,392,000
--(3,392,000)
----

Office
Equipment
US$
45,492
4,618
(4,227)
-45,883
399
46,282

Total
US$
3,437,492
4,618
(4,227)
(3,392,000)
45,883
399
46,282
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5.

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2011
Charge for the period
Disposal
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012
Charge for the year
At 31 March 2012

-------

19,496
19,093
(3,558)
35,031
10,344
45,375

19,496
19,093
(3,558)
35,031
10,344
45,375

Net carrying amount:
At 31 March 2012

--

10,852

10,852

At 31 March 2013

--

907

907

DEPOSITS
The deposit are US$2,000,000 (2012: US$2,000,000) paid to a third party for services in relation to engineering
design of a Normal Paraffin (“NP”) Complex which was originally planned to be installed in the NP Plant in
Singapore.
Following the Company’s termination of the plans to establish and operate the NP plant in Singapore,
management has reached an agreement with the third party to maintain the engineering design specification until
31 December 2016 (“the Suspension Period”). The third party agrees to resume the engineering service to
complete the delivery of the engineering design specification package if the Company decides to reactivate the
project and install the unit at any location during the Suspension Period subject to the fulfillment of certain
conditions.
Should the Company not activate the project by 31 December 2016, the deposits paid to the third party will be
forfeited.
At the date of this report, management is in preliminary negotiations with certain third party on the establishment
of such plant in another location.

6.

OTHER RECEIVABLES
2013
US$
Deposit
Prepayment
Sundry receivables

2012
US$

--

671

2,416
2,131
225,000
229,547

671

4,547

671
--

Other receivables denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 March as follows:
Singapore Dollar
7.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY
The amount due was non-trade, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settled in cash.
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8.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies at 31 March are as follows:
Singapore Dollar

9.

258,372

288,492

OTHER PAYABLES
2013
US$
Sundry payables **
Receipt from third party *
Accrualed liabilities

2012
US$

618,481
900,000
3,015
1,521,496

608,482
900,000
27,221
1,535,703

* Included in other payable is US$900,000 (2012: US$900,000) received from a third party who was a partner
(the “Project Partner”) to the NP Plant plan. The amount was received pursuant to the settlement agreement
between the Company and the Project Partner when the NP plant project in Singapore was terminated. This
represents 45 % of the deposits paid to a third party for services in relation to engineering design of the NP
Complex which was originally planned to be installed in the NP plant in Singapore (Note 5).
Pursuant to the settlement agreement, should the plan be reactivated in another location, and the Project Partner
is not the partner in the reactivated project, the Company has to repay the US$900,000 to the Intended Project
Partner. Management is in the process of negotiating with certain third party on establishment of such plant in
another location (Note 5).
** Included in sundry payables in US$599,450, which confirmations to ascertain the completeness and existence
are not been able to carry out due to the management has disputes with these amounts and do not agreed on
circulation to be done.
Other payables denominated in foreign currencies at 31 March are as follows:
Singapore Dollar

155,211

169,417

10. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
The amount due is non-trade, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settled in cash.
11. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The amount due was non-trade, unsecured, interest-free, repayable upon demand and to be settle in cash.
12. SHARE CAPITAL
2013
Number
of shares
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares

461,800

2012
US$
300,000

Number
of shares
461,800

US$
300,000
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The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All
ordinary shares have no par value carry one vote per share without restriction.
13. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
1.4.2012
to
31.3.2013
US$
Currency exchange gain-net
Interests received
Realised fair value gain of derivatives
Waiver of debt by:
- related company
- immediate holding company
- ultimate holding company
Gain on settlement of outstanding payable to a third party

4,111
2,331
------

1.1.2011
to
31.3.2012
US$
189,086
17,038
818,089

6,442

11,228
70,950
23,801
1,582,434
2,712,626

2,192

456,494
178,653
1,897,226
107,000
1,000,011

14. LOSS BEFORE TAX
The loss before tax is arrived at after charging:
Consulting Services
Legal Fees
Rental (Land)
Penalty & Fine expanses
Professional Fee

-----

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(i)

Major components of income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the year/period ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 are:
2013
US$
Statement of comprehensive income:
Under provision in prior years

--

2012
US$
698
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(ii) Relationship between tax expense and accounting loss
The reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting loss multiplied by the applicable
tax rate for the year/period ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
1.4.2012
To
31.3.2013
US$
Loss before tax

1.1.2011
to
31.3.2012
US$

(28,289)

(3,206,110)

(4,809)

(545,038)

Tax benefit on loss before tax
At 17 %
Adjustment:
Non-taxable income
Non-deductible expenses
Under/(over) provision in prior years
Total tax (expense)/benefit

(1,095)
5,904
---

545,038
698
698

16. STAFF BENEFITS
Employee Salaries
Employee CPF Contributions
Employee Meals allowance
Employee Relation
Employee House Maintenance
Employee House Rent
Employee House Utilities

2,124
344
-----2,468

1,245,806
19,967
5,036
2,431
2,450
32,744
4,412
1,312,846

17. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
In addition to those related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following
significant transactions between the Company and related parties that took place at terms agreed between the
parties during the financial year:
(i)

Significant related party transactions

Ultimate holding company
Repayment to
Written off
Immediate holding company
Repayment to
Written off
Related party
Sales
Repayment from
Sales return from

21,897

--

--

23,802

---

10,000,000
11,228

--

592
193
399

---
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(ii) Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Company are those persons having the authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities, directly or indirectly, of the Company. The directors of the
Company and the general management of the Company are considered as key management personnel of
the Company.
1.4.2012
To
31.3.2013
US$
Director’s fees
Director’s CPF

1.1.2011
to
31.3.2012
US$

---

190,560
3,289

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The
key financial risks include foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management policies focus
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to, where appropriate, minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance of the Company. The Company does not have any written financial risk management
policies and guidelines and there has been no change to the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
The following sections provide details regarding the Company’s exposure to the financial risks associated with
financial instruments held in the ordinary course of business and the objectives, policies and processes for the
management of these risks.
(i)

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign currencies.
The Company is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates arising from normal trading
transactions, primarily with respect to United States dollar (USD). However, the Company does not use any
financial derivatives such as foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency options or swaps or
hedging purposes.
Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
The following table demonstrates that sensitivity of the Company’s loss before tax to a reasonably possible
change in the SGD, with all other variables held constant.
Loss before tax
2013
US$
SGD
- strengthened 1 % (2012: 1%)
- weakened 1 % (2012: 1%)

11,790
(11,790)

2012
US$
12,495
(12,495)
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(ii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to
shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from possible mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of standby credit facilities.
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of reporting
period, based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Total
US$
2013
Other payables
Amounts due to immediate holding company
Amounts due to ultimate holding company

2012
Other payables
Amounts due to immediate holding company
Amounts due to ultimate holding company

Within
one year
US$

1,511,774
5,925,000
-7,436,774

1,511,774
5,925,000
-7,436,774

1,535,703
5,925,000
21,897
7,482,600

1,535,703
5,925,000
21,897
7,482,600

19. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following table summaries the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the
reporting year by FRS 39 categories:

Loans and receivables
Other receivables
Amount due from a related company
Deposits

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other payables
Amount due to immediate holding company
Amount due to ultimate holding company

2013
US$

2012
US$

671
-2,000,000
2,000,671

229,547
592
2,000,000
2,230,139

1,511,774
5,925,000
-7,436,774

1,535,703
5,925,000
21,897
7,482,600
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20. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged or settled
between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to
their sort-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or
near the end of the reporting period.
However, the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at the end of the reporting period
would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company does not have any other financial instruments carried at fair
value.
21. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the year/period ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012. The Company monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company is not
subjected to externally imposed capital requirements.
The Company will continue to be guided by prudent financial policies of which gearing is an important aspect.
2013
US$
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity attributable to the equity holder of the Company
Total capital
Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio

2012
US$

1,511,774
5,925,000
(644,018)
6,792,756

1,535,703
5,946,897
(468,998)
7,013,602

(4,791,178)
(4,791,178)

(4,772,611)
(4,772,611)

2,001,578

2,240,991

339 %

313 %
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22. RECLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain reclassification have been made to the prior year’s financial statements to enhance comparability with
current year’s financial statements. As a result, certain line items have been amended on the face of the
statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet and the related notes to the financial statements,
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with current year’s presentation. The reclassifications were
not significant.
The items reclassified were as follows:
Previously
reported
US$
Balance sheet
Current assets
Deposits
Other receivables
Amount due from a related company

3,982
226,157
-230,139

Reclassification
US$

(3,982)
3,390
592
--

After
Reclassification
US$

-229,547
592
230,139

23. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The financial statement for 2012 cover the financial period from 1 January 2011 to 31 March 2012. The financial
statements for 2013 cover the twelve months ended 31 March 2013. As such, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of change in equity, cash flows statement and the related notes for the current year and
previous financial period are not comparable.
24. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements of the year ended 31 March 2013 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 3 April 2013.
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